
 

 

 

                 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

FINANCE ADVISORY & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, August 26, 2014 
 

Chair Virginia Standish 
Vice Chair Cheryl Miller 

Committee Member Lung Chiu 
Committee Member Ken Johnson 

Vacancy  
 

Town Council Liaison Ryan Liang 



 
Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, August 26, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
Palms West Chamber of Commerce, 13901 Southern Boulevard 

 

 
Chair Virginia Standish                                                            Town Council Liaison Ryan Liang 
Vice Chair Cheryl Miller         Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Committee Member Lung Chiu                                                                                     Town Clerk Janet Whipple 
Committee Member Ken Johnson 
Vacancy                                                                

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

b. Approval of Agenda 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Approval of Minutes – August 4, 2014 (Page 4 ) 

 
3. PRESENTATION  

 
a. Review of Draft Capital Improvements Cost Sharing Policy (Page 7 ) 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. Municipal Financial System Software Proposals – Postponed until September Agenda 
 

b. Review of Purchasing Ordinance – (Included in 8/4/2014 Agenda Packet ) 

FAAC Agenda Packet 1 of 58



 
 
 
  5.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Approval of FY 2014  July Financial Statements - Postponed 

1. Budget vs. Actual  
2. Bank Reconciliation  
3. General Ledger Report   

 
b. Bank Statement  (Not included as part of Agenda Packet) 

c. Review of Planning and Zoning Invoices (Page 12) 
       
6.   Administrative Updates: 

      a. Reimbursements (Page 18) 

      b. Transfer of Funds for Equestrian Trails Improvement – LGWCD (Page 26) 

      c. Resolution of Claim – Wells Fargo Bank (Page 59) 

      d. Rescheduling of September 22, 2014 Meeting  

      

7.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 

b. Committee Members 

               

  8.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next FAAC meeting is Monday, September 22, 2014  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the FAAC must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must be 
filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Coordinator. During the meeting, before public comments, you 
may only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address 
any item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the FAAC with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 
 
 

FAAC Agenda Packet 2 of 58



 
Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Meeting 

Monday, August 4, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
Palms West Chamber of Commerce, 13901 Southern Boulevard 

 
                                                            MINUTES 

 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

Vice Chair Miller called the meeting to order at 7:10 P.M.     Present at the meeting were Vice 
Chair Cheryl Miller, and Committee members Lung Chiu, Ken Johnson, and Virginia Standish.  
Also in attendance were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Bill Underwood, UMSG, and Perla 
Underwood, UMSG. 
 

b. Approval of Agenda 

Member Chiu Moved, Seconded Member Standish to approve the Agenda.  The vote on the 
motion passed unanimously, 4/0. 

c. Appointment of Chair   

Member Chiu recommended that the Board postpone appointment of a Chair until a replacement 
member is chosen.  Following discussion, Member Johnson Moved to nominate Virginia 
Standish as Chair.  Member Johnson advised that Member Standish was most qualified and has 
the background to serve as Chair.  Vice Chair Miller relinquished the gavel, and Seconded the 
nomination.  Motion passed, 4/0.  

2.  CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Approval of Minutes – June 30, 2014  
Motion:  Member Chiu Moved to approve minutes as presented.  Member Johnson Seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously, 4/0.   

 
Member Chiu requested that the Committee continue to express its concerns to the Council about the 
establishment of a Road Improvement Policy to the Town Council.  Following a lengthy discussion, the 

FAAC Agenda Packet 3 of 58



Committee generally agreed that the Chair would present to the Town Council the FAAC’s 
recommendation on establishment of a policy on how dollars should be spent on road improvements, and 
other projects and request that Council direct staff  to develop a policy for consideration.   

  
3. PRESENTATION - None 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. Municipal Financial System Software Proposals  
 
Bill Underwood, UMSG, reviewed the four proposals, and provided preliminary information on 
each of the proposals submitted.  Mr. Underwood requested the Committee’s input on the 
Committee next course of action.  Following a lengthy discussion, the Committee generally 
agreed to contact Blackbaud, Tyler, and Springbrook in order to schedule presentations to the 
Committee.  Additionally, Member Chiu requested that Management contact the proposers to 
discuss elimination of specific options included that may not be needed by the Town within the 
next three years.  Following discussion Mr. Underwood provided a timeline from selection to 
implementation, but also reminded the Committee that this process will have to wait until after 
the Budget process is completed.   
 
Member Chiu Moved, Seconded by Member Johnson to schedule presentations.  Motion passed 
unanimously, 4/0. 
 
 

  5.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Approval of FY 2014  June Financial Statements  

1. Budget vs. Actual  
2. Bank Reconciliation  
3. General Ledger Report   

 
b. Bank Statement   

c. Review of Planning and Zoning Invoices  
 
Motion:  Member Chiu Moved, Seconded by Vice Chair Miller to consider 5a, b, c together. The 
vote on the motion was unanimous, 4/0. 
 
Chair Standish questioned the vendor payment schedule and asked if the there was sufficient time 
provided for invoice review.  Mr. Underwood advised that local governments must adhere to the 
Prompt Payment Act.  It was also acknowledged that the Town performs two checks runs 
monthly, on the 10th and on the 20th of each month, and advised that the majority of invoices 
received by the Town for contractual work and specify payment schedules.  
Member Johnson advised the Committee about a garbage problem at B Road and Collecting 
Canal Road that was immediately resolved by a Waste Pro employee last week. 

FAAC Agenda Packet 4 of 58



 
Vice Chair Miller Moved, Seconded by Member Johnson to approve the Financial Statements as 
presented.  The vote on the motion was unanimous, 4/0. 
 

             Keith Harris -  C Road  
 

Upon question regarding the Town’s public work function and solid waste monitoring, Mr. Harris 
was advised that work as it relates to public works is authorized by Town Manager as specific 
assignments deemed necessary.  With respect to the solid waste monitoring, that function is 
complaint driven, or assigned by Town Manager on a case by case basis. 

 
d. Review of Draft Purchasing Ordinance  

The Committee discussed and had questions relating to emergency purchases, and public 
construction bonds.   
 
Motion:  Member Chiu Moved that review of the Purchasing Ordinance be moved to the next 
Agenda under Old Business.  The Motion was Seconded by Member Johnson.  Motion passed, 
4.0. 

 
6.   Administrative Updates: 

      a. Reimbursements  

      b.  Fines Applied to Waste Pro  

Committee requested that a letter of thanks be sent to Waste Pro for their assistance to resolving 
illegal dumping at Collecting Canal Road and B Road.   

 

7.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 

b. Committee Members 

Committee members congratulated Virginia Standish in her appointment as Chair.   
 

 8.  ADJOURNMENT 

Member Chiu Moved and Seconded by Member Johnson to adjourn at 8:30 PM.  Vote the motion 
was unanimous.   

 
The next FAAC meeting is Tuesday, August 26, 2014  

 
 
 

______________________________   ______________________________ 
     Perla D. Underwood, UMSG     Virginia Standish, Chair 

FAAC Agenda Packet 5 of 58



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  

COST SHARING POLICY  
 

 
PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to provide an orderly and efficient 

method for the Town to balance the public service needs of the 
community with the fiscal capabilities.  New Programs, services, or 
facilities shall be based on: 

 
1. General citizen demand 
2. Need 
3. Or legislative mandate.  

 
The Town shall provide funding for public services on a fair and 
equitable basis, and shall not discriminate. 

 
POLICY: There is hereby established a policy for the creation of an 

assessment procedure for levy, collection, and adjustment of non-
ad valorem assessments: 

 
I. AUTHORITY 

 
A. SECTION 166.021, F.S. 

 
1. The legislative and governing body of a town shall have the 

power to carry on municipal government. To the extent not 
inconsistent with general or special law, this power shall include, 
but shall not be restricted to, the power to establish and 
subsequently merge or abolish capital improvement projects 
hereunder, for any part or all of the incorporated areas of the 
town, within which may be provided specified services. 

 
B. SECTION 197.3632, F.S. 

 
1. Non-ad valorem assessments may be collected in the same 

manner as ad valorem taxes, provided the Town Council of the 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves enters into a written agreement 
with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector for 
reimbursement of necessary administrative costs, and provided 
the Town Council adopts a resolution at a public hearing prior to 
January 1 of each year stating its intent to use the uniform 
method of collecting such assessments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 FAAC Agenda Packet 6 of 58



II CREATION 
 

A. It shall be the policy of the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves to require property owners residing on unimproved town 
roads who wish to have their roads improved may do so by petition 
process; however, the Town Council, at its discretion, may establish a 
minimum service area requirement. 

 
 

B.  Once the petition is completed and application is submitted, and 
{associated fee} a cost estimate will be prepared and the Town 
Council approved letter/vote card will be mailed to the benefitting 
property owners. 

 
1. All services are to be located on Town owned right-of-way, 

excepting situations wherein the affected properties owners 
are 100% responsible for the cost. 

 
C. The vote card must be signed and returned within 45 days of the 

date of the letter. The vote cards will be verified to determine that 
at least 51% of the benefitting responding property owners within 
the proposed unit boundaries signed in favor of the petition. 
Such verification shall be accomplished by comparing the vote 
card with the existing tax rolls of the Property Appraiser. The 
Town Council may also, at its discretion, increase the required 
percentage of signatures on a letter/vote card. 

 
D. Upon verification that 51% of the benefitting property owners 

signed in favor of the improvement, staff shall proceed with 
scheduling the project for public hearing. If the required 51% is not 
obtained within the 45 day period, the application will be deemed 
invalid and a letter will be mailed to the applicant to notify them 
that the requested improvement has not met the signature 
requirements. 

 
E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  

 
1. The Town shall develop a “Scope of Project”, engineering 

cost estimate and a preliminary budget and assessment 
rate based on the engineering estimate. 

 
2. For Road Paving projects only, roads that are maintained by 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves will receive a contribution from 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves for one-third (1/3) of the all 
costs associated with the construction cost and the affected 
property owners will be responsible for two-thirds (2/3) of 
the construction cost.  

 
3. On roads that are not town maintained, in addition to any 

other type of capital improvement project, the affected 
property owners will be responsible for 100 percent (100%) 
of the construction costs. Construction cost will include 

FAAC Agenda Packet 7 of 58



engineering services such as permits, surveys, inspections, 
testing and design. The full cost of these items is the 
responsibility of the affected property owners. 

 
4. Any additional property that is required to complete a paving 

and drainage project, i.e. right-of-way, drainage retention 
areas, etc., as determined by Town’s engineer, should be 
donated to the Town prior to the design phase of the project. 

 
 

  F.       OTHER SERVICES AUTHORIZED UNDER SECTION 166.021 
 

1. The Town shall develop a recommended project scope and 
assessment method with input from the petitioner’s 
representative for submitting to the Town Council of the 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves. 

 
2. The project scope shall include but not be limited to the 

following: 
 

(a) Legal description 
(b) Plat of project area 
(c) Location plan (if applicable) 
(d) Operational and capital budget 

 
G. Upon receipt of the Scope of Project, the Town staff will 

recommend to the Town Council the procedures for implementing 
and funding the proposed improvement (per front foot assessment, 
per lot assessment, per parcel assessment) and recommend a date 
for a public hearing. 

 
H. The Town staff shall request an assessment roll for the affected 

area from the Property Appraiser and shall certify the 
correctness of the roll for submitting to the Town Council at the 
same time the ordinance is adopted. 

 
I. The Town Attorney shall prepare an ordinance creating the 

improvement area (IA) for review by the Town Council. 
 
J. The Town Attorney will ensure the proper advertisement of a public 

hearing for the purpose of adopting the ordinance creating the 
improvement area (IA).  The notice shall be published at least once 
10 days prior to the scheduled hearing date. The Clerk’s Office shall 
be responsible for actual placement of the advertisement.  On roads 
that are not Town maintained, the petitioner shall be responsible 
for paying the cost of the advertisement directly to the newspaper. 

 
K. The Town staff will ensure the proper notice to each affected 

property owner by first class mail advising them of the date and 
time of the public hearing for the purpose of adopting the ordinance 
creating the improvement area (IA).  

 
FAAC Agenda Packet 8 of 58



L. Between June and September of each year, the Town will hold a 
public hearing to adopt the proposed non-ad valorem assessment 
roll for each new improvement area (IA) created during the 
preceding calendar year. The notice requirement and conduct of 
the hearing will be in conformance with the provisions of Section 
197.3632, F.S. In addition, a similar public hearing will be required 
in following years whenever there are changes in the boundaries or 
the purpose of the improvement area (IA) as outlined in Section 
197.3632(4) (a). 

 
M. All service contracts are to be processed and managed by the Town 

staff and shall be in compliance with the Purchasing policies 
established by the Town Council. 

 
N. An improvement area (IA) may be created at any time during the 

fiscal year. However, implementation shall coincide with the 
adoption of the annual Town budget October 1.  Valid petitions 
should be submitted by July 1 of the preceding year. All new 
improvement areas (IAs) must be created (ordinance adopted) by 
January 1 of each year in order to be implemented the following 
October.  

 
III. AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING IMPROVEMENT AREAS (IAs) 

 
A. Any change in an existing improvement area (IA), such as 

additional must be reviewed by the Town staff and the 
petitioner’s designated representative. Any proposed revision 
resulting in an increase or decrease in the services provided to the 
improvement area shall be reviewed by staff, which shall 
determine if a public hearing is necessary prior to approval of the 
revision. 

 
IV ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE FOR ADOPTION OF AN 

IMPROVEMENT AREA BUDGETS AND ASSESSMENT 
ROLLS 

 
A. The Town staff shall prepare the budget for the improvement area 

(IA) during the annual budget hearings and ensure that they are 
presented and adopted by the Town Council at the same time and 
fashion as the adoption of the Town’s Annual Budget. The Town 
Attorney shall prepare the resolutions documenting the Town 
Council’s approval of the improvement area (IA) budgets at the 
final public hearing to adopt the Town-wide budget. 

 
B. The Town management shall cause notice of the two public 

hearings (tentative and final) to consider adoption of the 
proposed improvement area (IA) budgets to be published in the 
form of a legal advertisement in a newspaper of general 
circulation. The two public hearings on the adoption of the 
improved area (IA) budgets shall also serve as the hearings to 
adopt the improvement area assessments. FAAC Agenda Packet 9 of 58



 
C. The Town staff shall prepare the IA assessment rolls annually and 

present them to the Town Council for adoption at the same time as 
the resolution and Town-wide budget. The Town staff will ensure 
that the assessment roll certifications are submitted to the Property 
Appraiser and Tax Collector for collection as set forth by F.S., 
Chapter 197.332. 

 
D. Upon the annual adoption of the IA assessment rolls, such rolls 

shall be certified by the Town staff to the Property Appraiser and 
Tax Collector by September 15 for billing and collections for that 
year. (Authority under Chapter 197, F.S.) 

 
E. Assessments become delinquent after April 1, and failure to pay 

may result in a lien levied against the property and may result in the 
sale of a tax certificate in accordance with 197.432, Florida Statutes. 

 
H. In the case when an individual IA is closed out, residual monies 

remaining in the Fund totaling 10% or more of the original up-front 
budget will all be refunded back to the property’s current owner of 
record as originally assessed, i.e., per lot, front footage, parcel, etc., 
unless the refund amount is less than $50.00. Any residual monies 
remaining in the Fund totaling less than 10% of the original up- 
front budget will be transferred to the affected department, i.e., 
Transportation.  Any shortages of monies within an individual IA 
Fund at close-out shall be transferred from the affected department 
into the IA Fund. 

FAAC Agenda Packet 10 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 11 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 12 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 13 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 14 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 15 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 16 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 17 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 18 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 19 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 20 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 21 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 22 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 23 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 24 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 25 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 26 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 27 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 28 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 29 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 30 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 31 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 32 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 33 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 34 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 35 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 36 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 37 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 38 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 39 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 40 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 41 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 42 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 43 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 44 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 45 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 46 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 47 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 48 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 49 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 50 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 51 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 52 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 53 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 54 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 55 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 56 of 58



FAAC Agenda Packet 57 of 58

Loxg finance
Text Box

Loxg finance
Text Box



FAAC Agenda Packet 58 of 58


	AGENDA
	MINUTES
	CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS COST SHARING POLICY
	P&Z Invoices
	Reimbursements
	Transfer of Funds for Equestrian Trial Improvements
	Resolution of Claim - Wells Fargo Bank



